
 

 
Page 1 of 6 

 

Intergovernmental Cooperation Authority for Harrisburg 

Minutes of the Governing Board 

Regular Meeting 

July 26, 2023 

Temple University Harrisburg, Strawberry Square, Harrisburg PA 

hbgica.org 

Members in Attendance  Mr. H. Ralph Vartan 
Mr. Doug Hill 
Ms. Kathy Speaker MacNett, on Zoom 
Ms. Elaine Barber 

A Quorum Was Recognized 

Ex‐Officio Members in Attendance  Mr. Michael Wood, 
Office of the Budget 
Ms. Marita Kelley, 
City of Harrisburg 

 

In Attendance  Mr. Michael Cassidy, Independent 
Counsel, on Zoom 
Mr. Jeffrey Stonehill, Authority Manager 

 

Meeting Begins     4:01 p.m. 

Welcome by H. Ralph Vartan, Vice‐
Chair 

Mr. Vartan opened the meeting.   

Report by the Vice‐Chair  Mr. Vartan noted that there was not a 
quorum at the beginning of the meeting, 
but one would be recognized upon the 
arrival of Ms. Barber. 
 
Mr. Vartan noted that the day after the 
previous month’s meeting, the City 
Controller’s monthly financial report to 
officials was received by the ICA Board. 
He noted that all revenues and expenses 
are on pace with the budget for the 
General Fund and the Neighborhood 
Services Fund. 
 
Mr. Vartan shared that the City’s 2021 
audit is now ready for review. A joint 
meeting with the City’s audit committee 
was to be today but it has been delayed 
to August 9, 2023.  
 
Mr. Vartan reminded the group that the 
2024 Five‐Year Financial Plan update will 
be delivered by August 31 after which the 

 



 

 
Page 2 of 6 

 

ICA Board will review and respond within 
thirty days. 

Report on City of Harrisburg 
Financial Activities 

Mr. Vartan introduced Ms. Marita Kelley, 
Finance Director, City of Harrisburg. 
 
Ms. Kelley introduced Accounting 
Supervisor, Bryan McCutcheon, to review 
the Neighborhood Services Fund 
collectibles. 
 
Mr. McCutcheon handed out a paper 3‐
page review of the Neighborhood 
Services Fund and reviewed the six‐
month overview of fund activities. 
 
He noted a significant current cash 
balance in the fund. The fund was 
created in 2016. He pointed out that the 
City is carrying a significant balance of 
unpaid invoices. He reminded the ICA 
Board that the City did not charge 
penalties for unpaid trash bills for over 
two years during the pandemic. That 
practice has resumed. He pointed out 
that the uncollectible fees have risen 
again to about $15.7 million, of which 
some is current, and some is past‐due. 
 
Mr. McCutcheon said the City maintains a 
95% collection rate over the last few 
years, but in 2023 it is down. 
 
Mr. Hill asked why there are significant 
past due accounts. Mr. McCutcheon said 
there were several reasons. 
 
Mr. Stonehill asked about the penalty 
schedule for unpaid fees. Mr. 
McCutcheon and City Solicitor, Neil 
Grover, explained that it was 1.5% of the 
unpaid balance compounded monthly. 
Mr. Stonehill noted that inflates the value 
of unpaid invoices as the grow every 
month despite little or no chance of 
collection. He explained that many 
municipalities assess a one‐time late fee 
of up to 10% and then the receivable 
does not grow over time. 

 



 

 
Page 3 of 6 

 

Mr. Grover said that the City does offer 
payment plan. 
 
Mr. McCutcheon reviewed the 
receivables from the three boroughs that 
the City collects trash on behalf of. There 
is strong revenue flow for all three 
boroughs. 
 
Mr. Vartan asked about the rate of 
collection on the accounts of the three 
boroughs. Mr. McCutcheon said it is very 
strong. 
 
Mr. Stonehill asked about the status of 
the intermunicipal agreement. Mr. 
Hartman, City of Harrisburg Business 
Administrator, said that likely there will 
be one‐year extensions as the rate 
consultant has just begun to analyze the 
relationships. He anticipates new rates in 
2024. 
 
Mr. Hartman reviewed the updated 
framework for use of the American 
Rescue Plan Act funding. He noted that 
the City is reporting all uses as revenue 
replacement so that alone satisfies the 
reporting to the Federal government. 
 
As a result, the City has two to four more 
years to use the funding. 
 
The City Council is now done with the 
amendment process to designate the 
uses of the American Rescue Act funding. 
 
Mr. Hartman updated the ICA Board on 
interim plans for the Broad Street 
Market. He said that a military tent with a 
floor and HVAC will be installed to permit 
the vendors to resume operation this 
year. 
 
With respect to the brick building, the 
City and the non‐profit are still 
coordinating all the insurance claims 
associated with the fire damage. Mr. 
Hartman thanked all the State and 



 

 
Page 4 of 6 

 

Federal agencies who are helping the 
vendors and the non‐profit. 
 
Mr. Stonehill asked about relationships. 
Mr. Hartman explained the inter‐
relationship of the parties. 
 
Mr. Hartman explained the importance of 
the market to the community. 
 
Ms. Barber asked about donations from 
other area businesses. 
 
Ms. Kelley re‐introduced Mr. 
McCutcheon so he could review the 
General Fund handout he provided. 
 
Mr. McCutcheon discussed year to date 
General Fund revenues. 
 
Mr. McCutcheon reviewed the 2021 audit 
meeting plans. 

Authority Manager’s Report  Mr. Stonehill provided the financial 
report for July 2023.  

 

Other Business  Mr. Doug Hill gave an update on the 
status of Impact Harrisburg. The Board 
has entered into an agreement with the 
Capital Region Economic Development 
Corporation (CREDC) to use the last 
funding for struggling small businesses. 
All funding provided through the Strong 
Plan is now expended. The Impact 
Harrisburg Board decided to keep the 
entity active in case there are additional 
funds through the incinerator litigation. 
 
Mr. Vartan thanked Mr. Hill for all his 
volunteer work for the community. 

 

Approval of the minutes of June 28, 
2023 
 
 

Mr. Vartan asked for a motion to approve 
the minutes. 
Mr. Hill offered a motion to approve. 
A second by Ms. Barber. 
The motion passes. 

Approved 4‐0. 
 

   



Page 5 of 6 

Public Comments  There were none.

Adjourn meeting at 4:48 p.m.  Motion by Mr. Hill. 
A second was not required. 

Approved 4‐0. 

Respectfully submitted: 

‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐ 

Jeffrey M. Stonehill, Authority Manager   



 

 
Page 6 of 6 

 

Appendix Documents 





Summary of Bills Paid – Intergovernmental Cooperation Authority for Harrisburg 

Report – July 26, 2023  

 

 

 Digital Ocean $12.72 July 1, 2023 

Website software licenses 

 Digital Ocean $6.87 July 1, 2023 

Web Host 

 Pursuit Co-Working Harrisburg $95.00 July 1, 2023 

Virtual Office Monthly Subscription 

 PA Media Group $139.42 July 17, 2023 

Legal Advertisement 

 MESH PA LLC $5,250.00 July 26, 2023 

Authority Manager 

 

Ending balance:      $129,404.35 

 

 Interest earnings Y-T-D  $16.00 
 Fees Y-T-D   $0 










